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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

(Translation of a report and annual accounts originally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance with Spanish
generally accepted accounting principles. In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails)

To the sole partner of International Foam Technologies Spain, S.L.U.
Report on the consolidated annual accounts
Qualified opinion

We have audited the consolidated annual accounts of International Foam Technologies Spain, S.L.U. (the
Parent company) and its subsidiaries, (The Group) which comprise the balance sheet at March 31, 2023,
the income statement, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows and the notes to the
annual accounts, all of them consolidated, for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for qualified opinion section of our
report, the accompanying consolidated annual accounts present, in all material respects, a true and fair
view of the equity and the financial position of the Company at March 31, 2023, and of the results of its
operations and cash flows, all of them consolidated, for the financial year ended March 31, 2023, in
accordance with the applicable framework of financial reporting standards (which is identified in note 3.a)
to the consolidated annual accounts) and, in particular, in compliance with the accounting principles and
criteria contained in that framework.

Basis for qualified opinion

As indicated in note 5 of the attached report, a consolidation goodwill has been generated with the
subsidiary company Interplasp, S.L. for an amount of 29,424 thousand euros. Additionally, the Group has
not amortized said goodwill, which constitutes a breach of the applicable regulatory framework for financial
information. This is the result of a decision made by management at the beginning of the 2019 financial
year. Based on a straight-line amortization method and an annual rate of 10%, the results for the year
ended March 31, 2023 are overvalued by 2,942 thousand euros, goodwill and reserves are overvalued by
10.298 and 7.356 thousand euros, respectively. Our audit report for the year ended March 31, 2022
contained a exception for this same issue.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the current Spanish standards for consolidated auditing
accounts. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated annual accounts section of our report.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements, including those relating to
independence, that are applicable to our audit of the consolidated annual accounts in Spain, as required
by the regulations governing the auditing of accounts. In this regard, we have not provided any services
different to the audit of accounts and no situations or circumstances have arisen that, based on the
aforementioned regulations, might have affected the required independence in such a way that it could
have been compromised.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified opinion.

Miembro de Grant Thornton International Ltd . - .
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Most relevant audit aspects

The most relevant audit aspects of the audit are those that, in our professional judgement, were considered
as the most significant material misstatement risks in our audit of the annual accounts of the current period.
These risks were addressed in the context of our audit of the annual accounts as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these risks.

In addition to the issue described in the Basis for Qualified opinion section, we have determined that the
risks described below are the most significant risks considered in the audit that should be reported:

Revenue recognition

The turnover includes a multitude of transactions and corresponds mainly to the sale of polyurethane foam.
Product sales revenue recognition occurs when the significant risks and rewards inherent in the ownership
of the good sold have been transferred to the buyer. Given the relevance and nature of the sales made by
the Group (note 14 a), we consider the revenue area to be an area of significance and susceptible to
material misstatement, particularly at the beginning and end of the financial year in relation to its adequate
temporary imputation.

Our audit procedures have included:

e \We have performed a revenue cycle analysis to gain a better understanding of when revenue should be
recognized.

s We have identified key controls and have evaluated their design and implementation.

e We have performed analytical procedures to identify and analyze unusual trends in sales.

e We have analyzed the balances of clients pending collection at the end of the year, performing
alternative verification procedures by examining the invoices issued or supporting documents for

subsequent collection.

e \We have carried out an analysis of the accounting entries recorded by the company.

We have performed documentary tests for a sample of income transactions close to the closing date
verifying that they have been recorded in the correct period.

Understanding of the accounting policy used by management to determine the presentation of accounting
effects in the consolidated annual accounts.

Other information: Consolidated directors’ report

Other information comprises exclusively the consolidated directors’ report for the financial year ended
March 31, 2023. The directors of the Company are responsible for preparing this report, which does not
form an integral part of the annual accounts.

Our audit opinion on the consolidated annual accounts does not cover the consolidated management
report. Our responsibility for the consolidated management report, in accordance with the requirements of
the regulations governing the activity of account auditing, consists of evaluating and reporting on the
concordance of the consolidated management report with the consolidated annual accounts, based on
knowledge of the Group obtained in carrying out the audit of the aforementioned accounts and without
including information other than that obtained as evidence during the same. Likewise, our responsibility
consists of evaluating and reporting whether the content and presentation of the consolidated management
report are in accordance with the applicable regulations. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement, we are required to report it.
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Based on the work carried out, as described in the previous paragraph, except for the material misstatement
indicated in the following paragraph, the information contained in the consolidated management report
agrees with that in the consolidated annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2023 and its content
and presentation are in accordance with the applicable regulations.

As described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, the Group has not amortized in the consolidation
goodwill recorded in this year, nor in previous years.

Responsibility of the directors of the Parent company for the consolidated annual accounts

The directors of the Parent company are responsible for the preparation of the accompanying consolidated
annual accounts, so that they show a true and fair view of the consolidated equity, the consolidated financial
position and the consolidated results of the Group, in accordance with the framework of financial reporting
standards applicable to the Group in Spain and for such internal control that they consider necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated annual accounts that are free from material misstatements, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated annual accounts, the directors of the Parent company are responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Parent company
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated annual accounts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated annual accounts as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the current Spanish regulations for auditing accounts will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated annual accounts.

As part of an audit in accordance with current Spanish regulations for auditing accounts, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

—  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement in the consolidated annual accounts, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures to respond to those risks and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

—  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors of the Parent company.
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—  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors of the Parent company’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention to
this in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated annual accounts or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

—  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated annual accounts, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated accounts represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves a true and fair view.

—  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated annual accounts. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. \We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors of the Parent company regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and the significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

From the significant risks communicated to the directors of the Parent company, we determine those risks
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated annual accounts of the current period and
are, therefore, the risks considered most significant.

We describe these risks in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter.

Grant Thornton, S.L.P. Sociedad Unipersonal

ROAC n° S0231 AUDITORZS
INSTITUTO DE CENSORES |JURADOS
DE CUENTAS OE ESPANA
f——r GRANT THORNTON, S.L.P.
\/-; 2023 Num. 18/23/00016
Informe de auditoria de cuentas sujeto
Antonio Marin Mart]'nez a la normativa de auditoria de cuentas
espafiola o internacional
ROAC n° 21642
May 15, 2023



INTERNATIONAL FOAM TECHNOLOGIES SPAIN, S.L.U.

AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheet of

Fiscal year ending on March 31, 2023

(expressed in euros)
(Free translation from the original in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy, the Spanish-language

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Intangible assets

Goodwill on consolidation

Other intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings

Technical installations and other fixed assets
Assets under construction and advances
Non-Current investments

Loans to third parties

Deferred tax assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables for sales and services rendered
Trade receivables group companies

Other debtors

Current tax assets

Current financial investments

Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

Capital and reserves
Capital

Authorised capital
Reserves

version prevails.)

Profit/(loss) for the year attributed to the Parent company

(Dividend on account)
Grants, donations and heritages received
Minority shareholders

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Non-current debts

Bank borrowings

Other financial liabilities

Not-Current debts, Group companies
Deferred tax liabilities

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current debts

Bank borrowings

Other financial liabilities

Current debts, Group companies
Trade and other payables
Suppliers

Suppliers, Group companies

Other payables

Current tax liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(*) Figures comparative restated note 3 e)

Note 31.03.23 31.03.22 (%)
45.667.976 41.925.140
5 29.427.724 29.429.624
29.424.026 29.424.026
3.698 5.598
6 15.768.498 12.065.028
6.986.442 7.141.145
4.121.053 4.660.369
4.661.003 263.514
7 204.650 -
204.650 -
13 267.104 430.488
18.262.838 17.383.497
8 6.714.721 7.541.598
7 9.155.276 8.607.815
8.995.316 8.132.878
17 1.575 -
3h) 62 163.300
13 158.323 311.637
7 71.396 63.920
2.321.445 1.170.164
63.930.814 59.308.637

Nota 31.03.23 31.03.22 (%)
22.737.502 20.134.435
11 21.677.460 19.126.384
12.003.000 12.003.000
12.003.000 12.003.000
7.167.370 5.143.331
2.673.666 2.024.153
(166.576) (44.100)
70.105 78.619
12 989.937 929.432
22.930.612 21.004.559
7 13.955.740 11.992.966
13.904.628 11.992.966
50.112 s
17 8.000.000 8.000.000
13 974.872 1.011.593
18.262.700 18.169.643
7 12.839.796 11.616.093
12.694.274 11.571.986
145.522 44.107
266.494 101.390
7 5.156.410 6.452.160
3.505.393 4.997.280
17 - 77.667
1.492.737 1.196.150
13 158.280 181.063
63.930.814 / F9.308.637




INTERNATIONAL FOAM TECHNOLOGIES SPAIN, S.L.U.

AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Income Statement of
Fiscal year ending on March 31, 2023

(expressed in euros)

(Free translation from the original in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.)

CONTINUING OPERATIONS:

Revenues:
Ventas
Changes in inventories of finished products and work in progress
Supplies:
Consumption of raw materials and other consumables
Work performed by other companies
Other operating income:
Non-trading and other operating income

Operating subsidies incorporated into the profit and loss for the financial year
Personnel expenses:
Wages, salaries and similar compensation

Employee benefit expense
Other operating expenses:
Other ordinary expenses
Losses, impairment and changes in provisions for commercial transactions
Amortisation/depreciation
Attribution of subsidies for non-financial assets and other
Impairment and gains/(loss) on disposals of assets:
Profit/(loss) on disposals and other
Other profit/(loss)
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS)
Finance income:
Marketable securities and other financial instruments
Finance cost
Net monetary gain/(loss)

FINANCIAL INCOME/(EXPENSE)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX
Corporate income tax
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
Profit/(loss) attributed to Parent company
Profit/(loss) attributed to minority shareholders

=4

01.04.22 to 01.04.21 to
Note 31.03.23 31.03.22
14.2) 47.213.817 51.177.779
47213817 51.177.779
(1.033.696) 1.103.876
14.b) (33.434.938)  (41.562.592)
(33.433783)  (41562,592)
(1.155)
180.708 164353
166.400 25
14.308 164.353
(3.918.737) (3.776.607)
(3.035.406) (2.907 445)
14.c) (883.331) (869.162)
(3.703.290) (3.103.765)
(3.020,096) (3.136381)
7 (683.194) 32616
5,6 (1.090.701) (718.021)
26.991 18.612
= 7.804
- 7.804
(955) (41.615)
4.239.199 3.269.823
1.909 77.044
1,909 77.044
(744.267) (521.438)
10 114.015 53.461
(628.343) (390.933)
3.610.856 2.878.890
13 (724.123) (688.320)
2.886.733 2.190.570
14 ¢) 2.886.733 2.190.570
2.673.666 024.153
12 213.067 166.417




INTERNATIONAL FOAM TECHNOLOGIES SPAIN, S.L.U.

AND SUBSIDIARIES
Statement of Consolidated Changes in Equity of
fiscal year ended on March 31, 2023
(expressed in euros)

(Free translation from the original in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.)

A) CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSE FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Consolidated profit/(loss) for the year

Granls, donalions and heritages received

Tax Effect

Total income and expense attributed directly to
Grants, donations and heritages received

Tax Effect

Total (ransfers to the li d income

TOTAL CONSOLIDATED RECOGNISED INOME
Total income and expense attributed to Parent
Total income and expense altributed to minerity

_Note 20272023 _ 30212022
2.886.733 2.190.570
- 20.000
- 20.000
(11916) (2340)
2979 -
(8.937) 2.340)
2.877.794 2.208.231
2.665.150 2.040.658
212.644 167.573

B) CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TOTAL CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2023

CLOSING BALANCE March 31, 2021
1 Tolal recognised income and expense
(-) Distribution of dividends
11 Other changes in equity
CLOSING BALANCE March 31, 2022
[ Total recognised income and expense
(-) Distribution of dividends
11 Other changes in equily
CLOSING BALANCE March 31, 2023

Profit/(loss) for Grants,
Reserves and the year donations and
Authorised prior years' attributed to Dividend on heritages Minority
Note capital profit/(loss) Parent company account received hareholders TOTAL

12.003.000 1340.418 3.802.913 (221.900) 62116 1.037.957 18.024.504

- - 20241353 16503 167 573 2208 229
12 - = = 177 800 = (276 098) (98.298)
- 3802913 (3.802.913) - - - -

12.003.000 5.143.331 2.024.153 (44.100) 78.619 929.432 20.134.435

- - 2.673 666 - 8514) 212644 2877796
- - - (122.476) - (152 233) (274 729)

- 2024.039 (2.024.153) = - 114 -

12.003.000 7.167.370 2.673.666 {166.576) 70.105 989.937 22.737.502

\7/




INTERNATIONAL FOAM TECHNOLOGIES SPAIN, S.L.U.

AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows of
fiscal year ending on March 31, 2023

(expressed in euros)

(Free translation from the original in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) for the year before tax

Adjustments:
Amortisation/depreciation (+)
Attribution of subsidies (-)
Result from disposals and disposal of fixed assets
Finance income (-)
Finance cost (+)
Exchang differences (+/-)
Other incomes / expenses (+/-)
Cambios en el capital corriente:
Inventories (+/-)
Trade and other receivables (+/-)
Other current assets (+/-)
Trade and other payables (+/-)
Other cash flows from operating activities:
Interest paid (-)
Interest received (+)
Income tax received (paid) (+/-)
Cash flows from operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for investments (-):
Intangible assets
Material assets
Fixed assets
Proceeds from sale of investments (+):
Other financial assets
Cash flows from investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payments made and received for equity instruments
Issue:
Grants, donations and bequests received (+)

Payments made and received for financial liability instruments:

Issue:
Bank borrowings (+)
Other debts (+)
Return and repayment of’
Bank borrowings (-)
Debts with group companies and associates
Other debts (-)
Dividends and interest on other equity instruments paid:
Dividends (-)
Cash flows from financing activities

NET INCREASE/DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

A

01.04.22 to 01.04.21 to
Nota 31.03.23 31.03.22
3.610.856 2.878.890
1.807.533 1.124.154
5,6 1.090.701 718021
7 (26.991) (18.612)
6 -- (7.804)
(330) (77.044)
744,267 521.438
10 o (53.461)
(114) 41615
(1.143.722) (2.679.299)
753 740 (1829.763)
7 a) (700.774) (260.135)
- (1.001)
7b) (1.196.688) (588 400)
(1.174.145) (1.131.706)
(744.267) (521438)
330 77.044
13 (430.208) (687312)
3.100.522 192.039
(4.792.266) (849.075)
5 = (5.760)
6 (4792.266) (842314)
= (1.001)
@1Z.126) 173.773
(212.126) 173773
(5.004.392) (675.302)
(18.244) 20.000
2 (18244) 20.000
3.348.433 21.257
5533952 1.694.599
314.481 -
(2.500.000) (1.500.000)
- (150.556)
~ (22785)
(275.038) (89.879)
(275.038) (89.879)
3.055.151 (48.621) /
1.151.281 (531.884)
1.170.164 17020047
3321445 70.163




INTERNATIONAL FOAM TECHNOLOGIES SPAIN, S.L.U.
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated report for the year ended
on 31 of March from 2023
(Free translation from the original in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy, the Spanish-language
version prevails)

1. Activity of the parent company

The group's parent company, INTERNATIONAL FOAM TECHNOLOGIES SPAIN S.L.U. (IFTS),
was incorporated on 12 June 2019. Its registered office is located at Calle Monte Esquinza, n® 30
Bajo lzquierda, 28010 Madrid. The Group develops its activitics in Carrctera de Villena s/n Yecla
(Murcia).

The main activity of the parent company is the acquisition, holding, management and administralion
of securities and sharcs or any form of representation of shares in the capital of resident and non-
resident entities in Spanish territory and financing of the investee entities. Likewise, the provision of
complementary or accessory services 1o the management of the activitics carried out by the investee
enlities.

The Company is integrated inlo the SHEELA FOAM Group whose parent company is SHEELA
FOAM. LTD. The registered office of SHEELA FOAM. LTI is in 14 Sector 135, Noida, Uttar
Pradesh - 201301 (India). In accordance with current legislation, the company INTERNATIONAL
FOAM TECHNOLOGIES SPAIN S.1..U. is not obliged to formulate separate consolidated accounts
due 1o its size, however, the dircetors voluntarily formulate consolidated annual accounts, The annual
accounts corresponding to the financial year ended March 31, 2022 were formulated by its
administrators on May 6, 2022, approved by its sole sharcholder on September 30, 2022 and
deposited in the Mercantile Registry of Murcia.

2. Subsidiaries

The subsidiaries included in the consolidation, which are not listed on the stock cxchange, and the
information related (o them at the end of the year ended March 31, 2023, and af the end of the year
ended March 31, 2022, is as follows:

AFLOE23
P
0 Result
parlicipaion
Vilue in books T Share Otlr eqpily
Namie ddress’ Activity of porticipatian Direct Capitul Besgrvatien Hems Urperating Mel Tulal Eguity
Interplasp. SL. / Coo. de
Wil 2 A0 Yecls
Ima. S e s 39.764.061 03,66 L.773125 T.162.213 (1.086.836) 4307020 34T0H33 10419335
{Murcia) ¢ Fahricacitn de
espuings de poliveting
39164 01
A 310322
%
e JLE==TH
Value m participation CHher
booksef = Sharc ity
Mame didiess' Aclivily pailicipation Dhzect Capital Rescrvation itzms Opzraling Met Taital Equity
Ierplasp, S.1. 0 Cia, de
Villenn  s'n 30310 Yeelo
e St F. TN REN LT73.125 6836674 14.5un 3525747 2727007 11.321.807
(Murciay 7 Tabncacidn de o R o ! ) 4 ;
esprumas de polivretuno
39764 061
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INTERNATIONAL FOAM TECHNOLOGIES SPAIN, S.L.U.
AND SURBSIDIARIES
Consolidated report for the year ended
on 31 of March from 2023

The group signed with the former owners of Interplasp, 5.L. on July 29, 2019, a contract for the sale of
shares for 93.66% of its share capital. Once the closing actions of the transfer of the shares were
completed, said contract was raised to the public on October 14, 2019, which is why the Group
established september 30, 2019 as the date ol the first consolidation. However, the Group and the sellers
agreed in that act to sign an escrow contracl and creale a deposit charged to the purchase price in the
amount ol 6.874.154 euros, which would be released in tavor of the sellers as the agreed purchase
conditions were met, a situation that was pending resolution at the date ol the formulation of the Group's
annual consolidation accounts. At the end of the financial year, an amount of 889,142 euros remains
pending release.

Basis of presentation ol consolidated annual accounts

True and fair view and consolidation policies

The consolidated annual accounts, consisting of the consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated profit
and loss account, the statement of changes in consolidated equity. the consolidated statement of cash
flows and the consolidated report composed of notes 20 a, have been prepared [rom the accounting
records of cach of the companies that make up the set consolidable, having applied the legal provisions
in force in accounting matters, specifically, Roval Decree 11359/2010, of September 17, which approves
the rules for the formulation of the consolidated annual accounts and modifies the General Accounting
Plan approved by Royal Decree 1514/2007, of November 16, 2007, and its modifications approved by
the Royal Decree 115%2010, of September 17, by Royal Decree 602/2016, of December 2, and by
Royal Deeree 1/2021, of January 12, in order to show the true image of the assets, of the siluation
results, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group during the corresponding linancial year.

Unless otherwise indicated, all figures in the consolidated report are expressed in curos.

by Non-mandatory accounting principles applicd

No non-binding accounting principles have been applied. The consolidated annual accounts have been
prepared in accordance with mandatory accounting principles. There is no accounting principle that,
its effeet being significant, has ceased to apply.

Key aspects of the measurement and cstimation of uncertainty

When preparing the accompanying consolidated annual accounts estimates made by the Group's
Directors have been used in order to measure some assets, liabilities, income, expenses and
commitments recorded in the accounts. These estimates relate mainly (o the bllowing:

- The assessment of possible impairment losses on certain assets (note 4 g), 4 h) and 4 i)).

- The useful life ol the tangible and intangible asset (note 4 ¢) and 4 1))

- The fair value of certain [inancial instrements (Note 4h))

These estimates have been made on the basis of the best information available up to the date of
preparation of these consolidated accounts, and there is no fact that could change these estimates. Any

future events not known at the date of preparation of these estimates could lead to changes (upwards or
downwards), which would be carried out, where appropriate, prospectively.

Lad



 INTERNATIONAL FOAM TECHNOLOGIES SPAIN, S.L.U.
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated report for the yvear ended
on 31 of March [rom 2023

d) Classification of assets and liabilities between current and non-current

f)

Assets and liabilities are presented on the consolidated balance sheet classilied into current and non-
current. For these purposes, asseis and liabilitics arc classificd as current when they are linked to the
Group's normal operating cycle and are expeeted to be sold, consumed, realized or liquidated in the
course of the same, are different from the previous ones and their maturity, disposal or realization is
expected to oceur within a maximum period of one year; they are held for trading purposes or arg
cash and other equivalent liquid assets whose use it is not restricted for a period exceeding one year.
Otherwise they arc classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Comparalive information

In accordance with commercial legislation, it is presented, for comparative purposes, with each of the
items of the consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated profit and loss account, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows, in addition to the figures
for the anmual year ended March 31, 2023, those corresponding (o the previous [inancial year. The
consolidated report also includes quantitative information from the previous year, except when an
accounting standard specifically establishes that it is not necessary.

In the review carried out in the 2022/23 financial year of the useful life of tangible fixed assets, the
Group has carried out a technical analysis of the current use of the technical facilities of the Yecla
Factory and, accordingly, has modified in 202223 its uscful life. The new remaining useful life of these
assets was reduced in the case ol constructions by 17 years and in the case of machinery and
installations by 5 vears. The impact of said change in estimale has been applied prospectively and
implies a higher annual amortization expense [or the 2022/23 [nancial year amounting 1o 240,479
curos compared to the previous financial year.

The Company has decided (o reclassify a balance held with Sheela Foam 1td included in creditors for
an amount of 101,390 curos in previous years, to a balance with group companies.

The Company has modified the criteria for recording and accounting for advances to suppliers that in
the previous financial year 2021/22 were recorded in current liabilities, reducing the heading of
suppliers. In the 2022/23 financial year, they have been recorded in the assets of the balance sheet,
including them in the heading of inventories and for comparative purposes, the figures for the previous
financial year 2021/22 of the balance of suppliers and the balance of the heading of inventories have
been modified, increasing both headings by the amount of 1.729.116 euros.

Consolidation principles

The consolidation has been carricd out for all dependent companies, by the method of global
integration, by holding an effective dominance by having a majorily ol voles in their representative and
decision-making bodies. In the cascs of the associated companies, they have been included in the
consolidation by the cquivalence procedure. The assumption that determines the method of
consolidation of these companies by this method is the significant influence, and the relative importance
of them within the perimeter of consolidation.
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4, Accounting and mcasurement policies

The main recording and valuation rules used for the formulation of consolidated annual accounts are
as follows:

a)

b)

c)

d)

Difference on f[rst consolidation

The difference on first consolidation has been calculated as the difference between he carrying value
of the interest held in (he subsidiaries and the value of the proportional part of their consolidated
equity at the date of the first consolidation.

In the event of a positive ditference on consolidation, which consists of the excess amount between
the cost of the investment and the theorctical carrying amount attributable to the investee company
at the date it joined The Group, it is directly attributed to the subsidiary's equity to the extent
possible, withoul exceeding their market value. If it cannot be assigned to equity items it is
considered to be goodwill on consolidation. In the event that this difference is negative, it is called
a negative difference on consolidation and it is recognized in full in the income statement on first
consolidation,

If, on the year-end closing daic in which a business combination has occurred, the valuation process
required (o caleulate the first consolidation difference cannot be completed, the consolidated annual
accounts shall be drawn up using securities provisional. In this case, these values shall be adjusted
in aceordance with paragraph 2.6 of the registration and valuation rule 19th Business combinations
of the General Accounting Plan.

Minority shareholders

The value of the minority sharcholders' participation in the asscts and results of the dependent
companies is presented, respectively, under the headings "External partners” and "External partners
profit and loss", the liabilities of the consolidated balance sheet and the "Prolit altributed to external
partners" in the consolidated profit and lass account,

Transactions between companies included in the scope of consolidation

The eliminations of reciprocal credits and debits, reciprocal expenses and income and result from
internal operations have been carried out based on the provisions in this regard in Roval Deerce
11592010, of Seplember 17.

Uniformity

The various items in the individual accounts for each of the companies have been measured in a
uniform manner by adapting the standards applicd to those used by the Parent Company in its own
annual accounts, provided that this has a significant etfect.

Intangible fixed assets

As a general rule, intangible fixed assets are registered as long as they meet the identifiability
criterion and are initially valued by their acquisition price or cost of production, subsequently
reduced by the corresponding accumulated depreciation and, where appropriate, by the impairment
losses it has experienced. In particular, the following criteria apply:
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e.l)  Goodwill

CGoodwill may only be recorded when its valuc is revealed through an acquisition for
consideration, within the context of a business combination.

Goodwill is assigned to each cash generating unit that is expected to reccive the benefits of
the business combination and, it applicable, the relevant adjustment is made.

Subsequent to the initial recognition ol goodwill, it is carricd at acquisition cost, less
cumulative amortization and impairment losses, where applicable.

Goodwill is amortized on a straight-line basis over ten years. Uscful life is determined
separatcly for cach cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated.

At the end of each vear, analyses are undertaken (o determine if there is evidence of
impairment of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated and, if there is
any evidence, impairment loss is checked. Measurement adjustments for impairment
recognized in goodwill are not reversed in subsequent years,

¢.2) Computer sottware

Software that meels recognition criteria are activated at their acquisition or development cost.
Its amortization is carried out linearly in a period of 3 years from the entry into operation ol
each application. The maintenance costs of computer applications are charged to the results
of the year in which they arc incurred.

f) DProperty, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is recognized at acquisition or production cost and is subsequently
reduced by any accumulated depreciation and by any impairment losses recognized.

Indircet taxes levied on property, plant and equipment are only included in the purchasc price or
cost of production when they are not recoverable dircetly from the Public Treasury. Included as
the highest value of property, plant and equipment, the initial estimate of the present value of the
obligations assumed arising from the dismantling or withdrawal and others associated with the
aforementioned asset, such as the costs of rchabilitation of the place on which it sits, provided
that these obligations give rise to the registration of significant provisions.

Costs relating to extensions, modernization or improvements which increase productivity,
capacity or cfficiency, or extend the useful lives of the assets are recorded as an increase in the
cost of the assets concermned. Repair and maintenance expenses are charged to the income
staternent in the year in which they are incurred.
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The Group depreciates its property, plant and equipment on a straight-line based on the estimated
usclul lives of the assets concerned. The following depreciation rates are applied:

Diepresciation

Assel rates

Buildings 1.5-3%

Technical installations 5-10%
Muchinery 3-12%
Furnishings 15%
Other Gacilities 10%
Taoling 10%
Data processing cquipment 15-25%
Yehicles 15%
Other assels 12%

Investments made for assets associated with operating leases and other similar transactions that
cannot be separated from those items used under leases classified as operaling leases arce
recognized as property, plant and equipment when they meet the definition for assets.

The depreciation of these assets takes place based on their useful lives which is the duration of
the lease or assignment agreement including any renewal period when there is evidence that such
a renewal will take place and when it is less than the economic life of the asset.

The following specific standards are also applied:

f.1) Land and natural property

Their acquisition price includes preparation expenses such as fencing, earthworks, sewerage
and drainage, demolition of buildings when necessary in order to start new construction,
inspection expenses and the drawing up of blucprints when prepared before acquisition, as
well as any initial ¢stimate of the present value of obligations deriving from the cost of
rehabilitating the plot of land.

f.2) Tooling and tools

Tooling and tools that are incorporated into mechanical assets are measured and depreciated
using the same rules applicable to the assets taken as a whole. In general, those that do not
[orm part of a machine and which are expected to be used for less than one year must be
cxpensed during that year. When the period of use exceeds one year, they are recognized as
an asset upon acquisition and an adjustment is applied at the end ol the year based on the
physical inventory thal is carried out and all reasonable eliminations due to wear and tear are
applied.

Templates and moulds used permanently in line manufacturing are also included and their
depreciation is calculated based on their cstimated useful lives. Custom moulds used for
isolated manufacturing processes are not considered to form part of inventory unless they
have a net realizable value.
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f.3) Assets associated with operating leases and other operations of a similar nature

Investments made thal arc not separable from those elements used in leases classified as
operational, are accounted for as tangible fixed assets when they meet the definition of assets.

The amortization of these investments is made according to their useful life, which will be
the duration of the lease or assignment contract, including the renewal period when there is
evidence to support that it will occur, when it is less than the economic life of the asset.

[4) Fixed assels in progress and advances

It includes all payments on account incurred in the purchases of the properties, technical
Facilities, other fixed assets before the effective delivery ol the same or pul into conditions

of use.
g) Impaiment of intangible and tangible fixed assets

Provided there is any indication of impairment, at the end of cach year The Group applies an
impairment test to estimate any possible impairment of intangible assets or property, plant and
cquipment that brings their recoverable value below their carrying value. These estimates would
be based on the future outlook for updated cash [lows based on current market developments and
through the application of prudent criteria and conservative management scenarios, as well as the
investments that will be necessary in the future.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, less selling costs, and value-in-use. The
procedure applied by The Group's management to perform this test is as [ollows: Recoverable
values are calculated for cach cash generating unit, although in the case of property, plant and
cquipment impairment is determined on an individual case-by-case basis, where possible.

In the event an impairment loss must be recognized as affecting a cash generating unit to which
goodwill has been fully or partially attributed, the carrying value of the goodwill relating to each
unit is reduced first, If the impairment exceeds the amount of the goodwill, the company will then
proportionally reduce the carrying value ol all other assets in the cash generating unit, up to the
limit of the higher of the following values: fair value less cost of sales, value-in-use and zero.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or the cash
penerating unit is increased to the revised estimate ol ils recoverable amount, but in a manner
such that the increased carrying amount docs not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognized in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognized as income.

h} Finaneial instruments

The Group, at the time of initial recognition, classifies financial instruments as a financial asse,
a [inancial liability or an equity instrument, depending on the economic background of the
transaction, and bearing in mind the delinitions of linancial asset, financial liability and equity
instrument, of the financial reporting framework applicable to it, which has been described in
footnote 2.a.

The recognition of a financial instrument occurs at the moment in which the Group becomes an
obligated party of it, either as an acquirer, as a holder or as an issuer of it.
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h.[) Financial asscts

The Group classifies its financial assets according to the business model it applies to them
and the characteristics of the instrument's cash fows, The business model is delermined by
the CGroup Management and this reflects the way in which cach group jointly manages
financial assels (o achieve a specific business objective. The business model that the Group
applies to each group of financial assets is the way in which it manages them with the aim
of obtaining cash lows,

When categorizing assets, the Group also lakes inlo account the characiceristics of the cash
flows they accrue. Specilically, it distinguishes between those financial assets whose
contractual conditions give rise, on specified dates. to cash flows that are collections of
principal and interest on the amount ol the outstanding principal (hercinaficr, asscts that meet
the UPPI criterion), of the rest of financial assets (hereinafter, assets that do not meet the
UPPI criterion).

Specifically, the Group's [inancial asscts are classificd into the following categories:
h.1.1.) Financial assets at amortized cost

They correspond to financial assets to which the Group applies a business model that
aims to receive the cash flows derived from the execution of the contract, and the
contractual conditions of the linancial asset give rise, on specilied dates, (o cash Qows
that are only collections of principal and interest, on the amount of the outstanding
principal, even if the asset is admitted to trading on an organized market, so they are
assets that meet the UPPI criterion (financial asscts whose contractual conditions give
rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are charges of principal and interest on the
amount of the outstanding principal).

The Panel finds that contractual cash flows from a financial asset are only charges of
principal and interest on the amount of outstanding principal, when these are those of
an ordinary or common loan, without prejudice to the transaction being agreed at a
zero or below-market interest rate. The Panel finds that this criterion does not meet,
and therefore does not classify within this category, financial asscts convertible into
equity instruments of the issuer, loans with inverse variable interest rates (1.e. a rate
that has an inverse relationship with market interest rates); or those in which the issuer
may defer the payment of interest if such payment would affect its solvency, without
deferred interest aceruing additional interest.

The Group, in assessing whether it is applying the business model of collecting
contractual cash flows to a group of financial assets, or, on the conlrary, is applying
another business model, takes inlo consideration the liming, frequency and value of
sales that are occurring and have occurred in the past within this group of financial
assets. Sales in themselves do not determine the business model and therefore cannot
be considered in isolation.
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Therefore, the existence of one-off sales, within the same group of financial assels,
does not determine the change of business model for the rest of the financial assets
included within that group. To assess whether such sales determine a change in the
business model, the Group takes into account existing information on past sales and
on expected future sales for the same group of financial assets. The Group also takes
into account the conditions that existed at the time of the past sales and the current
conditions, when evaluating the business model that il is applying to a group of
financial assets.

In general, credits for commercial operations and credits for non-commercial
operations are included within this category:

- Credits for commercial operations: Those financial assets thal originate with the
sale of goods and the provision of scrvices for traftic operations of the Group for
the deferred collection

- Credits for non-commercial operations: Those [inancial assets that, not being
equity instruments or derivatives, have no commercial origin and whose collections
are of a determined or determinable amount, from loan or credit operations granted
by the Group.

They are initially recorded al the fair value of the consideration delivered plus
transaction costs that arc directly attributable.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, credits for commercial (ransactions with a maturity
not exceeding one year and which do not have a contractual interest rate are initially
valued at their nominal value, provided that the elfect of not updating cash flows is
not significant, in which case they will continue to be valued later at that amount,
unless they had deteriorated.

After their initial recognition, they arc valued at amortized cost. Accrued interest is
recorded in the consolidated profit and loss account .

At the end of the year, the Group makes appropriate impairment valuation corrections
whenever there is objective evidence that the value of a financial assel, or of a group
of financial assets with similar characleristics of collectively valued risks, has
deteriorated as a result of onc or more events occwrring after its initial recognition,
that cause a reduction or delay in the collection of estimated [uture cash flows, which
may be motivated by the insolvency of the debtor.

Impairment valuation adjustments are recorded on the basis of the difference between
their carrying value and the present value at the end of the year of the future cash flows
that are estimated to be generated (including those from the enforcement of collateral
and/or personal guarantees), discounted al the effective interest rate calculated at the
time of their initial recognition. For variable interest rate financial assets, the Group
uscs the eftective interest rate which, in accordance with the contractual conditions of
the instrument, corresponds 1o apply at the end of the year. These corrections are
recognized in the consolidated profit and loss account.
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h 1.2.) Financial assets al cosl
This category includes the following financial assets:

- Investmenls in equity instruments whose fair value can not be determined by
reference (o an active market, or cannot be reliably estimated, and derivatives that
have as underlying this Lype ol investment.

- Hybrid financial assets whose fair value cannot be reliably estimated unless it
meets the criteria to be classified as a financial asset at amortized cost.

- Contributions made to joint accounts and the like.

- Participalory loans whose interest is contingent, either because a fixed or variable
intercst rate is agreed conditional on the fullillment of a milestone in the borrower
(c.g. the obtaining of profits), or because they are caleulated with reference to the
evolution of the activily of this.

- Any financial asset, which could initially be classificd as a financial asset at fair
value with changes in the profit and loss account, when it is nol possible to oblain
a rcliable estimate of fair value.

They are initially recorded al the fair value of the consideration delivered plus
lransaction costs that are directly attributable. Fees paid (o legal advisors, or other
professionals, involved in the acquisition of the asset are accounted for as an expense
in the consolidated profit and loss account. Nor are the expenses generated internally
in the acquisition of the assel recorded as the greatest value of the asset, recorded in
the consnlidated profit and loss account.

Equity instruments classified in this category are valued at their cost, minus, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of impairment valuation corrections.

The contributions made as a result of a joint venture account contract and the like arc
valued at the cost, increased or decrcased by the profit or loss, respectively, that
correspond (o the Group as a non-managing shareholder, and less, where appropriate,
the accumulated amount of the valuation corrections [or impairment.

The same criterion applies to equity loans whose interest is contingent, either because
a fixed or variable interest rate is agreed on the fulfilment of a milestone in the
borrowing company, or because they are calculated exclusively by reference to the
evolution of the activity of the aforementioned company. If' in addition to a contingent
interest it includes an irrevocable fixed interest, the latter is accounted for as a financial
income based on ils accrual, Transaction costs are charged to the consolidated profit
and loss account on a linear basis over the lile of the cquity loan.

At least at the end of the year, the Group makes the necessary valuation corrections
whenever there is objective evidence that the carrying value of an investment is not
recoverable.
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The amount of the valuation correction is calculated as the difference between its
carrying value and the recoverable amount, understood as the largest amount between
its fair value minus the costs of sale and the present value of [uture cash flows derived
from the investment, which in the case of equity instruments is calculated, either by
estimating those expected to be received as a resull of the distribution of dividends
made by the investee entity and the disposal or withdrawal from accounts of the
investment in it, or by estimating its participation in the cash flows that are expected
to be generated by the investee, from both its ordinary activities and its disposal or
withdrawal from accounts.

The recognition of impairment valuation adjustments and, where appropriate, their
reversal shall be recorded as an expense or income, respectively, in the consolidated
profit and loss account. The reversal of impairment shall be limited to the carrying
value of the investment that would be recognized on the date of reversal if the
impairment had not been recorded.

h 1.3.) Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are removed from the consolidated balance sheet, as established in the
Conceplual Accounting Framework of the General Accounting Plan, approved by
Royal Decree 1514/2007, of November 16, taking into account the economic reality
of the transactions and not only the legal form of the contracts that regulate it. In
particular, the wrile-off of a financial asset is recorded, in whole or in part, when the
contractual rights to the cash flows of the financial asset have expired or when they
are transferred, provided that such transfer substantially transfers the risks and benefits
inherent in its ownership. The Group understands that the risks and benefits inherent
in the ownership of the financial asset have been substantially assigned where their
exposure to changes in cash flows ceases to be significant in relation to the total change
in the present value of net future cash flows associaled with the financial asset. If the
Group has not substantially divested or retained the risks and benefits of the financial
asset, the f(inancial asset is terminated when control is not retained. If the Group
mainlains control of the asset, it conlinues to recognize it by the amount to which it is
cxposed by changes in the value of the transferred asset, that is, by ils continued
involvement, recognizing the associated liabilities.

The difference between the net consideration received from the attributable transaction
cosls, considering any new assels oblained less any liabilities assumed, and the
carrying value of the translerred linancial asset, plus any accumulaled amount that has
been directly recognized in the consolidated net worth, determines the gain or loss
arising from the cancellation of the financial asset and is part of the result of the year
in which it occurs.

The Group does not deregister financial assels in assignments in which it substantially
retains the risks and benefits inherent in its ownership, such as write-off, "recourse
factoring" operations, sales of financial assels with a repurchase agreement at a [ixed
price or at the sale price plus interest and securitizations” of financial asscts in which
the Group retains subordinated or other [inancing. of guarantees that absorb
substantially all expected losses. In these cases, the Group recognizes a financial
liability in an amount equal to the consideration received.

12
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h.2) Financial liabilities

A financial liability is recognised on the consolidated balance sheet when the Group
becomes an obligated party to the legal contract or business in accordance with the provisions
of the contract or busincss. In particular, the [inancial instruments issued are classified, in
wholc or in part, as a financial liability, provided that, according to the economic reality of
the same, it implies for the Group a contractual obligation, dircet or indirect, to deliver cash
or other financial assets or to exchange [inancial asscts or liabilities with third parties under
unfavorable conditions.

Also classified as a financial liability, any contract that may be settled with the Group's own
assets instruments, provided that:

- Tt is not a derivative and obliges or may oblige to deliver a variable amount of its own
cquity instruments,

- If it is a derivative with an unfavourable position for the Group, which can be settled by
a form other than the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or other financial asset for a
fixed amount of the Group's equity instruments; for this purpose those that are , in
themselves, contracts for the future receipt or delivery of the Group's own assets
instruments.

In addition, the rights, options or warranis that allow obtaining a fixed number of instrumenls
of the Group's own assets are registered as cquity instruments, provided that the Group ollers
such rights, options or warrants in proportion to all partners of the same class of instruments.
of heritage. However, if the instruments give the holder the right to liquidate them in cash or
by delivering equity instruments based on their fair value or at a fixed price, these are
classified as financial liabilitics,

Contributions made as a result of a joint-stock account contract and the like are valued at the
cost, increased or decreased by profit or loss, respectively, that correspond to the Group as a
non-managing sharcholder, and less, where appropriate, the accumulated amount of
impairment valuation corrections. In this case. when the entire cost of the joint account has
deteriorated, the additional losses generated by the joint account will be classified as a
liability.

Participatory loans that acerue interest of a contingent natlure are recorded in the same way,
either because a fixed or variable interest rate is agreed conditional on the fulfillment of a
milestone in the borrowing company (for example, the obtaining of profits), or becausc they
are calculated exclusively by reference to the evolution of the activity of the aforementioned
company. The financial expenses accrued by the equity loan are recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account in  accordance with the accrual principle, and the
transaction costs shall be charged to the consolidated profit and loss account on a [inancial
basis or, if not applicable, on a linear basis over the life of the equity loan.

In those cases, in which the Group does not transfer the risks and beneflits inherent in a
financial asset, it recognizes a financial liability in an amount equivalent to the consideration
received.
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T'he categories of financial liabilities, among which the Group classifics them, are as follows:

- TFinancial liabilities at amoriized cost

- Financial liabilities at fair value with changes in the profit and loss account

h. 2. 1} Tinancial liabilities al amortized cost
In general, the Group classifies the following financial liabilitics into this category:

- Debits for commercial operations: are those financial liabililies that originate in the
purchase of goods and services for tralfic operations with deferred payment.

Additionally, all those financial liabilities that do not meet the criteria to be classified as
financial liabilities at fair value with changes in the profit and loss account will be classified
within this category.

Amortized cost finance liabilitics are initially valued at the fair value of the consideration
received, adjusted for directly attributable (ransaction costs.

Motwithstanding the [oregoing, debits for commercial transactions with a maturity not
exceeding one year and that do not have a contractual interest rate, as well as dishursements
required by third parties on shares, the amount of which is expected to be paid in the short
term, are initially valued at their nominal value, provided that the eflect of not updating cash
flows is not signilicant.

Subsequently, they are valued for their amortized cost, using the effective interest rate. Those
that, according to what was mentioned in the previous paragraph, are initially valued at their
nominal value, continue (o be valued at that amount.

h.2. 2) Reduction of financial liabilities

The Group cancels a financial liability when the obligation has been extinguished,  The
Group also cancels its own financial liabilities that it acquires (even if it is with the intention
of sclling it in the future).

When there is an exchange of debt instruments with a lender, provided that they have
substantially different conditions, the reduction of the original financial liability is recorded
and the new financial liability that arises is recognized. In the same way, there is a substantial
change in the current conditions of a financial liability.

‘The difference between the carrying value of the financial liability, or the portion thereof
that has been written off, and the consideration paid, including attributable (ransaciion costs,
and which also includes any assigned assets other than the cash or liability assumed, is
recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account for the period in which it occurs.
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When there is an cxchange of debt instruments that do nol have substantially different
conditions, the original financial liability is not removed from the consolidated balance sheet,
recording the amount of commissions paid as an adjustment 1o its book value. The new
amortized cost of the financial liability is determined by applying the effective interest rate,
which is the one that equals the carrying value of the financial liability on the date of
modification with the cash {lows to be paid under the new conditions.

For these purposes, the terms of the contracts are considered to be substantially dilferent
when the lender is the same as the one that granted the initial loan and the present value of
the cash flows of the new financial liability, including net commissions, differs by at least
[0% trom the present value ol the outstanding cash flows of the original financial liability,
both updated to the effective interest rate of the original liability. Additionally, the Group in
those cases in which this difference is less than 10% also considers that the conditions of the
new financial instrument are substantially different, when there are other types ol substantial
modifications in it of a qualitative nature, such as: change from fixed interest rate to variable
interest rale or vice versa, restatement of the liability in a difTerent currency, an ordinary
loan that becomes a participatory loan, etc,

i) Inventories

Inventories are valued at their acquisition price, cost of production or net realizable value, the
lowest. The weighted average price method is applied for its valuation. Commercial discounts,
rebates obtained, other similar items and interest incorporated into the nominal of the debits are
deducted in the determination of the purchase price.

The cost of production includes material costs, labor and other direct costs.

The net realizable value represents the cstimate of the sale price deducted from the estimated
_costs to finish its manufacture and the costs that will be incurred in the marketing, sale and
distribution processes,

For those stocks that need a period of time greater than one year to be able o be sold, the cost
includes the financial expenses that have been remitted by the supplicr or correspond to loans or
other type of external financing, specific or generic, directly attributable to the manulacture or
construction.

Where the net realisable value of the inventory is less than its purchase price or cost of
production, appropriate valuation corrections are made recognising them as an expense in the
profit and loss account,

Such corrections are reversed it the circumstances thal caused the correction of the value of the
inventory had ceased to exist, being recognized as income in the profit and loss account.

~In the case of raw materials and other consumable materials in the production process, no
valuation correction is made when the finished products to which they are incorporated are
expected to be sold above cost. When it is appropriale to make the valuation correction, the
replacement price is taken as a measure,
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The valuation of obsolete, defective or slow-moving products has been reduced to their possible
realisation value, with the correction made in the profit and loss account for the year being
recorded.

Transactions denominated in foreign currency

The conversion into functional currency of the debit and creditor balances generated in the
operations expressed in foreign currency is carried out applying the exchange rate in force at the
time of carrying out the corresponding operation, being valued at the end of the year according to
the exchange rate in force at that time. In cases of exchange coverage, only the part of uncovered
risk is considered.

Exchange differences resulting from the year-end valuation of foreign currency debits and credits
are charged directly to the profil and loss account.

Grants, donations and legacies received

They are initially accounted for as income directly imputed (o equity, being recognized in the profit
and loss account as income on a systematic and rational basis in a manner correlated with the
expenses derived from the grant, donation or bequest according to the criteria described below:

- If they are granted to finance specific expenditure, the allocation is made as the subsidized
expenses accruc.

-If they are granted for the acquisition of assels or inventories, they are imputed to results in
proportion to the amortization or, where appropriate, when their disposal occurs, valuation
correction due Lo impairment or loss in the balance shect.

-Monetary amounts received without allocation to a specific purpose are charged as income in the
year.

Grants, donations and bequests reecived of a monetary nalure are valued at the fair value of the
amount awarded.

Carporate income tax

The companies of the Group are taxed separately by corporalion tax. Profit tax expense or income
is calculated by the sum of the current tax expense or income plus the portion of the deferred tax
expense or income.

The current tax is the amount that results from the application of the tax rate on the taxable base of
the year and aller applying the deductions that arc taxable.

Deferred tax expense or income corresponds to the recognition and cancellation of deferred tax
assels and liabilities. These include temporary differences thal are identified as those amounts that
are expected to be payable or recoverable arising [rom differences between the carrying amounts
ol assets and liabilities and their tax value. These amounts arc recorded by applying to the
temporary difference the tax rate at which they are expecied to be recovered or seitled.
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Deferred lax liabilitics are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except those in which
the Group can control the timing of the reversal and are not likely (o reverse for the foreseeable
future. For their part, deferred tax assets are only recognized to the extent that it is considered likely
that the Group will have future tax gains against which to make them effective.

Deferred tax assels and liabilities arising from transactions with direct charges or credits to equily
accounts are also accounted for in equity consideration.

At cach accounting close, the deferred taxes recorded are reviewed in order to verify that they
remain in force, making the appropriate corrections to them. In addition, unrecorded tax deferred
asscts are assessed and recognized to the extent that they become likely to be recovered with future
tax benefits.

The Group is covered by the consolidated corporate lax return regime according to a
communication received on March 5, 2020, in which it is assigned as tax group number 496/20.
Since then, the corporate tax return for the years corresponding to the Group's companies will be
carried out under a tax consolidation regime.

m) Related parly transactions

Transactions between rclated parties, regardless of the degree of linkage, are accounted for in
accordance with the general rules. Accordingly, in general, the items to be transacted are accounted
for at the initial time at their fair value. If the price agreed in a trade differs from its [air valuc, the
difference is recorded according to the economic reality of the transaction. The subsequent
assessment is carried out in accordance with the provisions of the corresponding standards.

Income and expense

Income comes mainly from the sale and provision of services, the purchase and sale of upholstery
material, as well as fabrics of all kinds and the manufacture of chemical and plastic products. The
main cconomic activity of the Company is the manufacture of polyurethane foam for its subsequent
commercialization in the national market.

To determine whether to recognize revenue, the Company follows a live-siep process:

1. identification of the contract with a client

2. Identification of performance obligations

3. determination of the transaction price

4. Allocation of the transaction price to performance obligations
5. Revenue recognition when performance obligations are met.

Ordinary income is recognized at the lime the sale is delivered to its customers, that is, when the
Company satisfies the performance obligations by transferring the promised goods or services to
its customers at the fair value of the consideration received or at receive, less any discount or
commitiment assumed.
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o) Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

The consolidated cash flow statement has been prepared using the indirect method, and it uses the

following expressions with the following meaning:

s Operating activitics: activities that constitute the Group's ordinary income, as well as other

aclivilics that cannot be classified as investment or financing.

e Investment activities: activilies of acquisition, disposal or disposal by other means of long-
term assets and other investments not included in cash and their equivalents,

+ TFinancing activities: activities that produce changes in the size and composition of
consolidated net worth and liabilities that arc not part of the operating activities.

5. Intangible fixed asscis

The balances and variations during the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, in the items that make

up the intangible (ixed assets, are the following:

Gowdwillof  Camputer sofiware

comsnlidation s other intngilie
Tnterlasp, 5.1.. I55Els Tuatal
. al i

Balance at 0 L4421 0424020 340997 29.785.023
Entradas - 5760 of 5.760
il 30 013,22 29,424 024 346757 & 20T0.TRI
Additions - - "
Dalamce o 31032 29,434,024 346757 20770, TR
Acwimilated anartisation -
Bialamoe w 01,0421 - (340554 ) (340,996)
Adlocalien - (161 i (161)
Bulange ol 3103 22 - {341.157) 4 (341.157)
Allacation s {ronty {1901
Talance at 31,0323 - 1343058) (143 058)
Carmying amannd at 31,0312 i Hod 24 26 3594 " 29425 030
Carring mmsunt ol 31.03.23 424026 3008 219427724

The gross value of the items in use that arc fully amortized is as [ollows:

Balance gl Nalance at
Account 31.03.23 31.03.22
Computer soflware 1235990 325.9%

The Group has carried out the impairment test on the Goodwill of Interplasp, S.L. using cash flow
projections to determine recoverable value. Impairment tests have been carried out on the closing
date and as a result of these (ests it has been concluded that there is no impairment. The projections
prepared by Management cover a period of 5 years, an average cstimated cash flow of 4.8 million
curos and use as a discount rate a weighted average cost of capital after taxes (WACC) of 8.5%.
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6. Property, plant and equipment

The balances and variations during the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, of the gross values,
the accumulated amortization and the valuation coneclion are:;

Teshnival Assets under
nstallations and construction and

T.and and building other fixed assels advances Total
Girnss valucs
Balance at 01.04.21 L1218 12.006_55% ANGG18 21125624
Additions 3056 435 g AN 363 B42.313
Drepartures, casualtes of reductions . (183.653) - (183.633)
Tuaspasns a / de oiras partidas - 3454067 {545.467) =
Balamee at 31.03.22 == BTL6.104 12 R04.667 . 263514 21, 784.285
Additions = 21.705 3072 4.397.489 4.792.266
Balumee wl 310523 R.73T.R0D 13.177.739 4.661.003 26578550
Acumulated depreciation
Balance at 01.04.21 (A3 109y (7.572.364) - {003,474
Allocation to depreciation (143 849} (374011} . (717860}
Depantures, casualties or reductions - 2077 - 2077
Halanos @ 31.03,22 (1.574.958) (144 308} - (2.719,256)
Allocatien o depreciation {1 76409) (912.3%1) = (1088, 800}
Balance at 3102323 (175136 (050689 ) - [10.808.056)
Cirrying amnount at 531.03.22 T141.145 o G360 2638514 12 065.028
Currving amuounlal 31,0323 0 EG.A42 4. 121053 4.661.003 15.768. 4958

The additions have been generated mainly by the project to expand production facilities, made up of
two new constructions and machinery, mainly the new dryers. In addition, as every year there have
been registrations aimed at replacing old facililies of said factory.

T'he gross value of the items in use that arc fully amortized is as follows:

& oo Lialance at Balance al

’ 31.03.23 310322
Iand and building 225,565 225565
Technical installations and olher lixed assets 2755880 2774203

2.OK1.445 2.999.770

During the year ended March 31, 2023, no fixed assets have been disposed of. During the year ended
March 31, 2022, tangible fixed assets were disposed of for a gross book value of 161.810 euros and a
profit as a result of these losses of 7.804 euros.

The net value separately of the construction and the land, of the propertics owned, is as follows:

Accomt Balance at Balange at

310523 30522
Tamul 176,474 176.474
Tuildings 0,804 508 f.964.671
1,986,442 7141145
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Financial instruments

7.a.) Financial assets

The carrying value of cach of the categories of financial instruments set out in the "Financial
Instruments" registration and valuation standard is as follows:

Nuom-gurent financial agscts

Credils, derivatives and others

Tatal

31.03.22

31.03.23 31.03.22

204650

31.03.23
Cateporics:
Fimameial assels at amortized cost 2k [ED
204650

Hd A5

Current finemcial assels

Wenlth inslrumenis Credits, derivatives and nthers L'otal
310323 11.03.22 31.03.23 31.03.22 310323 31.03.22
Categories:
Financial assels ol amortized cost - - R R.13287R 0032474 5132878
Financial assels al cost 30434 434 3400 33486 31834 73,920
3434 0434 9036278 B lan3ed O 00,712 B 196,798

7.a.1) Financial assets at amortized cost

The breakdown of the amortized cost [inancial assets classified in this category as ol March

31, 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

Concopto

Financial investoents
L.nuns [0 companies

Credils granied

Customers for sales and provision of scrvices
Custemers [or sales and provision of services group
companies (note 17}

Teal

20

Mo corrent Current
310323 3L.03.23 310522
204 650 17.562
20 650 37562
- 5000 891 8112 878
- 8005315 B 132,478
- 1.575
204 650 G036.028 5132878
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The details of the balance sheet heading of "Commercial debtors and other accounts
receivable” classified as [inancial assets at amortized cost, are as follows:

Concepl 31.03.23 30322
Cuslomers [or sales and services 8995316 £.132.878
Customers for sales and services group companies (nole 17) 1.575 -
Total %.996.891 B132.878

The changes resulting from impairment losses caused by credit risk by financial asset class
have been as follows:

31.03.23 31.03.22
Cuslimers Customers
Concepto Current Current
T.oss dhue L initial deterioration 1682605 1.715.221
Tmpairmenl valualion correction 770,999 1R.047
Credit impainuent reversal (RE.T91) [50.663)
Loss duc to final deterioration 2.364.813 L GE2.60S5

As of March 31, 2023, the Group had collected a balance of customers who were
provisioned in the amount of 986 euros.

7.a.2.) Financial assets at cost

The delails of the financial assets classified in this category as of March 31, 2023 and 2022
are as follows:

310323 31.03.22
CCurrent Current

Adquisition cost MNet book value  Aduuisition cost MNet bool value

Wealth instruments 30,434 10.434 0434 30.434
Oiher [nancial assets 3.400 3,400 33 486 33,486
33.834 3383 63920 63,5920
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The fair value of financial assets included in this category as at 31 December is as follows:

31032023 31.03,2022
Currenl Current
Mel bonls value Fair valuc Met book value Fair value
Wealth instruments 30434 30,434 30434 30,434
(ther financial asscts 3400 3,400 33,480 33.486
XKL 33834 63,920 63,5920

Except for the balances with group companies are included in note 17, the carrying value of
each of the calegorics of financial instruments established in the "Financial Instruments”
registration and valuation standard is as [ollows:

Mom-gurrent financial liahilitics

Bank Borrowings (thers Lotal
31.03.2023 31.03.2022 J1.03. 2023 ¥E03.2022  31.03.2023  31.03.2022
Financial hubabities al amorieed cost 13.904.628 1159492 %66 51.112 - 13955740 11,992,966

Current financial liahilitics

[k borowings (her Tonal

3103, 2023 31.03. 2472 JLO3HES 3033022 SLOG0ES 31,05 2

Finnneizl babalities al umorlzd cost 12694.27 1157106 4543831 £ 16,594 17238105 17 988, 580

7.b.1) Financial liabilities at amortized cost

The breakdown of the balances of financial liabilities classilied in this category as at 31
March 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Mon-current Currenl
Concept 30.03.23 31.03.22 310371 310322

Lsank borrowings 13,0904 628 11992 966 12,694,274 11,571,946
Variable type 13,904,628 11.992 966 12.684.274 11.571.985
Trade and sther payables - . AFWE A0 6270097
Suppliers B - 3505393 4 557,280
Suppliers, goup companies - . = 77667
Sundry ercditors . - 25515 6573
Persomal - 67401 249.277
CHher finuncial linbilities 51.112 . 145,521 145.497

Tatal 13.955.740 11,992,965 17238105 1 7988580
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7.b.1.1) Commercial creditors and other accounts payable

The details of the heading of the consolidated balance sheet of "Commercial ereditors and
other accounts payable” classified as financial liabilitics at amaortized cost are:

Concept 31.03.23 31.03.22
Supplies 3,505,393 4 907 280
Supplies, group companics - 776067
Sundry creditors R25515 946 873
Personal (unpaid remuncration) G 249277
Toatal A AU A0 6.271.007

For the purposes of the provisions ol the second additional provision of Law 31/2014, of
December 3, which modifics the Capital Companies Law and in accordance with the
Resolution of February 29, 2016 of the Institute of Accounting and Auditing of Accounts, a
detail is included below with the average period of payment to suppliers, ratio of operations
paid, ratio of operations outstanding, total payments made and total outstanding payments:

2023-22 202221
Dias Dias
Average Suppliers pavinent period 30 16
Ralio of vperations paid 3 34
Ratio of operalions pending payment 34 3a
M023-22 2022-21
Imparte Importe
Total payments made 33.454.894 45.117.935
Total oulstanding payments 2.676.501 3,901,326
2123-22 2022-21

Yolume of invoices paid within the legal lerm RElad b Sl

Number of invoices paid within (he legal term ] 1958
Pereenlage of the volume of invoices paid within the frran L
legal term aver the total volume of invoices paid (%)
Percentage of the number of invoices paid wilhin the

2 s 92% RO

lepal term over the total number ol invoices paid (%)
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7.h.1.2) The discount lines and credit policies granted are as follows:

31.03.2023
Amount dispased
Lirmil of 31.03.23 Avalizghle amount
Financing facilitics 4,150,000 342525 1.807.475
Conlirming 895,000 5588031 2.306.969
Credit card 22,500 1483 21017
12067, 500 5932059 H.135.461
31.03.2022
Ao disposed
Limit of 310322 Avvaliable amount
Finaneing lacilitizs 3.650.000 2.601.736 1R 281
Confirming T RRZ.0O0 6638373 L.230.627
11535000 9260104 2ITEEN

7.h.1.3) Classification by maturity

The breakdown by maturity of the different long-term [inancial liabilities, with a determined
or determinable maturity, at the end of the yvear ended March 31, 2023 is as follows:

2024-25 2026-27 2024-25 Rest Tial

Financial liahilitics at amortized cnst

Bank horrowings 5741 087 1527 881 1.012.016 3.623.644 13.904 628

The breakdown by maturity of the different long-term financial liabilities, with a determined
or delerminable maturity, at the end of the year ended March 31, 2022 is as [ollows:

202324 2024-25 202526 Total

Finaneinl liabilities at amonized cost

IVank borrivwings 4468203 4998923 2525841 11,992 966

8. Inventories

At the end of the year ended March 31, 2023 and the 2022 [inancial vear, there are no firm
comimitments (o buy and sell, as well as futures or options contracts relating to stocks.

4. Information regarding the nature and level of risk from (inancial investment

The management ol the Group's financial risks is centralized in , which has established the
necessary mechanisms to control exposure to changes in interest rates, as well as to credit and
liguidity risks. The following are the main financial risks impacting the Group:
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a)  Credit nisk:
In general, the Group maintains ils reasury and equivalent liquid assets in [inancial institutions
wilh a high credil level. Additionally, most of its accounts receivable from customers are secured
by credil insurance, guarantces and other similar guaranices.,
It should also be noted that there is no significant concentration of credit risk with third partics.
b) Liquidity risk:
In order to ensure liquidity and to be able to meet all the payment commitments arising from its
activity, the Group has the treasury thal shows its balance sheet, as well as the financing lines
detailed in the note of debts with credit institutions.

¢)  Market risk {(includes interest rate, exchange rate and other price risks);

Both the Group's cash flow and linancial debt are exposed (o interest rate risk, which could have
an adverse eflect on nancial resulls and cash Dows.

Regarding exchange rate risk, it is mainly concentrated in commercial operations with different
American countries and the Asian continent, denominated in dollars, yen, pounds, Argenting
pesos, Brazilian reals and Chinese yuan. In order to mitigate this risk, the Group follows the
policy of contracting exchange insurance that reduces exchange differences for transactions in
forcign currency (sce Note Debts in foreign currency).

1. Foreign currency

The amount of exchange differences recognised in the profit and loss for the years ended 31 March
2023 and 2022 by class of financial instruments is as follows:

The amounts corresponding (o purchases and sales, as well as o services provided and received,
denominated in foreign currency, expressed in their equivalent in curos, are the following:

3103, 2023
Achivis LIsn
Commgrenl debts and others bills o recaive the pay (20R5)
Clishy md ollser eguivalent hounl assels 41,254
3103201
Masivng [J5T)
Commercial debitors and other accounts payable 1437432
31032022
Aclivos usLy
Commercial dehies and others hills o receive the pay (224,530}
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31032022

Pagivos UsD

Comnmerciul debitors wnd other accounts payable 1,403,230

The amount of exchange differences recognized in the results for the financial years ended 31 March
2023 and 2022 by class of Inancial instruments is as follows:

31032023 31.03.2022

Concepto Diélaves Didlares

Sales 2.852.165 1842 455
Purchases (7.342.658) [2.783.61%

Transactions scttled  Transactions settled in

Actives in the vear the vear
Commereia] debls and others bills to reccive the pay 48.002 44715
Commercial debitors and other accounts payable 66013 8.745

11. Capital and reserves

a) Share capital

The Parent Company was incorporated on June 12, 2019 with a share capital of 3,000 curos,
represented by 3,000 shares of | euro of nominal value cach, numbered correlatively from 1 to
3,000, both inclusive, indivisible, and which granted the same rights 1o their holders.

On Oetober 14, 2019, the sole sharcholder ol the Parent Company adopted the decision to increase
the capital by 12. 000,000 euros. After this decision, the share capital was divided into 12,003,000
shares of nominal value of 1 euro each, numbered correlatively from | to 12,003,000, both
inclusive, indivisible and granting the same rights to their holders.

b} Reserves

Its detail is as follows:

Balanee at Balance at
31.03,23 310322
Mepative resulls from previows years [or the Parenl Company G104, 7495 4. 290,001
Results in consolidated companies ol Interplasp, 5.0 10162571 B33.330
Total 7167370 5.143.331

In accordance with article 25 of Law 27/2014 of November 27 on Corporation Tax, according
towhich an unavailable reserve must be provided during the period of five vears for the amount
of the reduction in the taxable basc ot the Corporation Tax applied as a Capitalization Reserve
(see note 15). At the end of the 2022/23 financial year, Interplasp, S.1.. Tt has a capitalization
reserve for the amount of 812,567 curos,
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12. Minority sharcholders

The movements ol the exercises ended on March 31, 2023 and 2022 and have been the

following:
30323
Parlicipation in
Italance at resulis financial 3alance at
01.04.22 Dividends Other adjusiment vear 2023 310323
Interplusp, S.1.. 929,432 {152.253) (30 213.067 OE9.937
310322
Participation in
Bralance al results financial Balance sl
01.04.21 Oither adjustment Dividends year 2021 3.03.22
Interplasp, 5.1, 1.037.957 1.156 (276.008) l66.417 925,437

The composition of this item at the end of the financial years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 is
as [ollows:

Talance ai 31.03,23

Equity Participation in~ Participation in Parficipalion in Balance at
participalion reserval ions arants resulis 31,0322
Interplasp, 5.L. 112416 659,551 4.903 213.067 489,037

Ralanes gl 31.03.22

Fuity Participation in - Parlicipgtion in -~ Participation in Balance al
participalion reservalions rrants resulls 31.03.22
Interplasp, 5.1.. 112416 £43.237 5,361 Lo6. 417 929.432

On September 21, 2022, the General Mecting of Members agreed to deliver an extraondinary dividend
to exlernal partners charged to voluntary reserves and a distribulion of an interim dividend from the

result of the year between April 1, 2022 and March 31, 2023 for a total amount of 16,654 euros, As
follows:

Dividend an
Partner account Ratention Liguid
D Alejandro Juan Palao Serrano §.327 [.582 6,743
D. Jose Miguel Palao Serranc 8.327 1.582 6.745
16.654 3lad 13.490
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On December 19, 2022, the General Meeling of Shareholders agreed to distribute a dividend to exicrnal
shareholders on account of the result of the year between April 1, 2022 and March 31, 2023 for an

amount of 54,196 euros, as [ollows:

Dividend on

Partner aceount Relenlion Liguid
13, Algjandro Juan Palao Serrano 27008 5027 22.071
D, Jose Miguel Palao Serrano 27.09% 5.027 22.0M
54,196 10.054 44,142

On March 17, 2023, the General Meeting of Shareholders agreed to distribute an interim dividend to
external shareholders amounting to 95,726 euros on account of the result for the vear between April 1,

2022 and March 31, 2023, as follows:

Dividend on

Partner aceoum Retention Liguid
12, Alejandre Juan Palao Serranc 47863 9.064 18,764
D Jose Miguel Palao Serrano 47863 000 1R 769
93720 18,188 T1.538

In total at the end of the year, the interim dividend to the sharcholders on account of the result of the
year amounts to 166,576 euros (44,100 at the end of the previous vear),

13, Fiscal siluation

The details of the accounts related to Public Administrations in the vears ended March 31, 2023 and

2022 are as follows:

31052023
Balance receivable Balance payable
Accoun Mon-current Current Mon-current Current

Walue added the (VAT) - 449 GaR
Tor grants awarded - 02 - -
Personal income Lax - - - 52971
Iefered tax assct 207104 - = -
Current tax asset / liabilities - 58323 - -
Defered tax lahility - " 974872 -
Cwrrent tax liability - - 158,280
Social Security - - - U7.383

267104 158,385 974 872 TR 102
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31.03.2022
Balance receivable Galance payahle
Acocount Mon-currcnt Current Mon-current Current

Walue neddded tax (VAT) - - - 263816
For grants awarded - 163,304 - -
Personal income lax - - - 36,131
[Jefered lnx msed 430488 - - -
Current tax assct S liabilities - 311.637 - 181.0683
[Tefered tux lahility - - 1011593 =
Current tax liability - . - 1.973
Secial Securily - - - £7.258

430488 AT1.937 1.011.593 372241

The Group is covered by the consolidated corporate tax return regime according to a communication
received on March 5, 2020, in which it is assigned as tax group number 496/20,

The reconciliation between the consolidated accounting result and the sum of taxable bases of the
consolidation perimeter of the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, is as [ollows:

Fiscal vear [rom 010422 (0 310323

Trofit and loss account

Increases Decreases Total

Accounting income 2886773 2886773
Corporation tax T42 676 (18.553) 724,123
Permanent consolidation diflerences 4089657 - 4085657
Tetmanent differences individual companies 272674 (3.841.760) (3.560.084)
Tempaorary difterenees in individual companies

Witk origin in previous years - (&8930 (AS1.310)
Temporary consolidetion diflferences

With origin in previous years 74212 - 74212
Pre-tux hase 1314371
Reducciion by capitalization neserve (2019, 10k)
Tax base { Tux result) 345,267
Pre-imtegrated foc T73807
leductions (194.517)
With holdings and pavments on account (737.613)
Liguid to retum (158.323)
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Fiscal year from 000421 (0310322

Protit and loss account

Increwsses [Jecrenses Todul

Accounting income 2,190,570 2090570
Corporation tax T06.873 {18.553) 688320
Permanent consolidation differences 14497463 & 147463
Permanent differences individual companics B3 167 (1629071} (1543504
Tempurary differences in individual companies

With origin in the excrcise 432 262 - 432262
With origin in previous years - 21313 (21.313)
Tempuorary consolidativn differences

With origin in previons years 212 - 71212
Pre-tax base J3all
Fedueetion by capitalizalion reserve (325540
Tax basc (Tax result) 2992071
Pre-integralied fee TR0
Deductions (263 .428)
With holdings and payments on account {796,227y
Liguid to return (311.637)

In accordance with article 25 of Law 27/2014 of November 27 on Corporation Tax, according to
which an unavailable reserve must be allocated during a period of five years for the amount of the
reduction in the tax base of the Corporation Tax applied as Capitalization Reserve (see note 11). At
the end of the 2022/23 lnancial year, Interplasp, 5.L. I has a capitalization reserve for the amount
of 813,216 euros.

The detail ol the deductions applied in the consolidated corporation lax is as [ollows by capitalization
reserve:

Y ear Amount
2022-23 219104
2021-22 325,340
2020-21 382,226

2020 105,430

10032320
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The breakdown of the corporate tax expense of the companies that make up the group is as follows:
Tiscal year from 010422 (0 310323

Linhilitizs

Tatal
Corrent tax Deferred tax Diefored tax cxpensc

Contmuing opcrations T, 790 (340.330) 267 663 T24.123

TFiscal year from 000421 g 31,0322

Masels Liabilities

Adjustments
t dircet Total
Current tax taxation  Deforred tax Deforred tax expense

Recogiized in income slatement
Conlinuing operulions B20.287 { LOR.D6a) (5.328) [18.553) (&%.320

Tax-loss carryforwards yet to be offset recorded by the individual companies are as follows:

Company Taxable incame
International Foam ‘lechnologies Spain, S.L.UL {20.228)

The details of the deferred taxes recorded are as follows:

DBalance at 31.00.23 Bleme al 31,03,22
rechtor ehior Crecitor
Dchtor balances balances balances balimes
Lass eredits 1o be offset 6357 - 6.557
Deterred taee (cecuctibality it for the interests of the Parent
Coanpany'} 61,780 - 21278 -
Credits for losses (o be compensated wider te fiscal
[rarsparency resims 183848 1233
Amortizntion I 30% 14918 - 21,313 -
Reaistered arnts pending impatation - 112425 - 130.5493
Differences of consolidation - An2 447 - BE1,000
267.104 074 872 430487 1011593

According (o current legislation, laxes cannol be considered definitively settled until the returns
submitted have been inspected by the tax authorities or the four-year limitation period has clapsed. As
of March 31, 2023, the companics of the Group have open (o inspection the non-prescribed years and
pending review by the tax authorities for the taxes that apply to them. The Directors of the Parent
Company consider that the settlements of the aforementioned taxes have been properly practiced, so
that, even in the event of discrepancies in the current regulatory interpretation due (o the tax treatment
granted to the operations, the possible resulting liabilities, if they materialize, would not significantly
alleet the attached consolidated annual accounts.
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Merger by absorption of the entity ALMACENES LA GIRALDA. S.L.

On June 20, 2016, the General Sharcholders” Meeling unanimously agreed (o the Merger by
absorption of the company INTERPLASP, S.L. (acquiring company) Lo the company
ALMACENES LA GIRALDA, 5.L. (absorbed company), with the following dissolution without
liguidation and extinction of the absorbed company and block transfer of all the assets of the same
to universal title to the Acquiring Company. These agreements were submitted to the public on
October 13, 2016 and registered in the Mercantile Registry ol Murcia,

Since these are transactions between group companies, it has had an accounting effect since |
January 2016. The assets transferred 1o the acquiring company have been incorporated into its
accounting records for the value granted to them in the individual annual accounts, There are no
assets that have been incorporated into the accounting books of the acquiring company for a value
dilTerent [rom that for which they appeared in the accounting records of the company being
acquired prior (o the completion of the operation. The last closed balance sheets of the acquired
companies are attached as a document annexed (o Lthis report.

‘The merger operations described above are subject to the special tax regime established in Chapter
WII, Title VII of Law 27/2014 of November 27, 2014 on Corporation Tax.

The assels and liabilities recognized [or their value in the individual annual accounts of Almacenes
La Giralda, S.I.. have been the following:

Aszel Aot Liabilities Amuunt
Mon-current asscts Mon-current liahilitics
Fied assels T2 K24 Lang-term dihe A9 T90
Real estate investiments 61853 Diebils 1o group companies and associates 30000
[dctorred tax asscts G2 280 Mon-current commercial creditors
Current assets Current liahilities
Trventony 21080 Short-term provisions -
Commercial debtors and other reccivables 55393 Bhort-term dehis 31670
Shart-tesm financial mvestments - Supphers and other payahies IRKT13
Shaort-term aceruals 2.015 Short-term accruals "
Efectivo y otrs activos liquidos equivalentes 24.550 [ehts with special characteristics =

Tzl active 1785000 Tl habilites 1.212.573
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The details ol the tangible lixed assets incorporated on the occasion of the merger are as follows:

Acquisition Accumulated

Account Deseription S Ccixsl deprecialion

210800000 | TERRENOS DEL CARCHE 5.518 -
210800002 | SOLAR PARTIDA LA LOMICA 8.660 -
210803001 | TERRENOS ANEXOS NAVE DEL CARCHE 131 -
2NB00000 | CONSTRUCCIONES, YECLA 7.444 (6.927)
211800001 | NAVE DEL CARCIIE 18.213 (18.213)
ZTIROOOOZ [ ASFALTO DE CALLES 14.847 (14.884)
21800004 | RECONS TRUCCION NAVE SINIESTRO INC 424.900 (137.976)
211800007 | REFORMAS COMERCIALES 7.832 {2.585)
2HIR0000% | REFORMAS NAVE S 103,441 {35.194)
211800009 | REFORMAS NAVE 2006 (C.P.) 36.986 {4.709)
2LIR00010 | REFORMAS NAVE 2007 (T.I) 8201 (2.212)
211800011 | REFORMAS NAVE 2007 (JM.E.) 6.065 {13.824)
211800012 | REFORMAS NAVE (CH.A.P.) 63.727 (405)
21TR00013 | REFORMAS NAVLE (P.5.) 2253 (1.274)
211803001 | NAVE EXPANDIDO 178,088 (515)
211803002 | NAVE PLASTICO DURBUJAS (AP 33.448 (7.871)
211803003 | NAVLEPATRI 2.855 {600
2VTROA004 | RECONS T NAVE SINIES TR INCENDIC 1.562 (48.208)
212R00000 IE INSTALACIOMES THCNICAS-YECLA 14,567 (14,367}
212800010 | INST. TRANSFORMADOR PARA MAQUINA 13 21,795 (21.795)
212803003 | INSTALACION PLACAS SOLARES M. EXPA 436 (319
212803004 | INST.HUMIDIFICAC. NAVE EXPANDIDO f.471 (5.176)
212803005 | INSTALACTON GAS, N.EXP.PROPA DOME 28310 (22.648)
212803014 | INST.CONTRA INC.NAVE NUEVE PLAST. B2.604 | (49.563)
212803015 | TRASLADO MAQINST.NAVES NUEVAS 6- 20278 | (12.167)
212803016 | INSTALAC.ELECT.NAVES NUEVAS PLAST 422 (233)
212803017 | CENTRAL.PANASONIC KXTA 3085P(S.CA b6 (413)
212803018 | TELEF.INAL SIEMENS GIGASET(S.CAST | ity (83
212803019 | TELEF.INAL PANASONIC KXTADESPS, 160 (96}
212803020 | GRABADOR DIGITAL MPEGHPROTEC,YTE 1.581 (791}
Z12RO3021 | TELEE INALSIEM GIGASETALTTO(IG] 7 (11}
212803022 | CAMARA NETWORK INT.PANORAM.(PROTE 15.670 (1.367)
213800004 | MAQUINA PLASTICO DE BUBLIAS MODEI. 327.551 (327.551)
213B00012 | MAQUCORT. TELA SAMBA N%34.1 ASCO 7.750 (6.667)
213800013 | MAQUCORT.TELA SAMBA NM34.2{ASCO 1750 (5.554)
213803002 | MAQUINA ENVOL EXTRABANI MIOIXL311.3 11720 (11.720)
213803003 | DOSIFICADOR TCL-600,1OSIFIC,1C-3 15.626 (15.626)
Z13R03006 | MAQUINA CONFECCION BOLSAS PLASTIC T1.833 (71.833)

I 213803008 | MAQUINA PLASTICO BURBUIAS (FEQIUE? 12.020 { 12.ﬂ2n}{
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MAQUINA CONF.BOLIAS PLAST.MODMST
MAQUINA TIE ORILLOS
MAQUINA HACER BOLSAS LISAS

2138030107
213803019
213803020
213803024
213803031
213803033
213803034
213803037
213803038
213803039
213R03041
2138032
213803043
213803043
213803040
213803049
213803050
213803051
213803052
213803053
213803054
213803055
213803056

213803057

213804050
213831000
217803048
217803050
217803051
217803052
218800008
218800011
218800018
21800028
218R0O032
21RE0MM34
218800035
21RR00039
21801000
218803004
21880504

LINEA LAMINACION PLASTIBUR

MOLING TIPO 1925 M3-5 INSONORIZA
REFRIGERADOR INTECOMOD.RCASH.33
LAMINADORA FOAM-LAMB (POLYPRISE |
MAQPLASTICO BURBLIAS 240 ANCHO
MAQEXPANDIIC MO M 140{ POLY)
MAQTUBOS MOILPMBIOLY)
MAQBOLSAS CMV. MO BC-1800
DEFPOSITO GLP MAQEXTRIPROPA 1M0M,

| REGRANUL.EXACT MODLEVOI. 10

| MACQLPLAST.BURB. AL 60 MOD.SPCS
DOSIFICADOR TCLI200(MASA TRANS.)
MAQUINA MARCA CMY MOD.PALET-1800
MACQRECIC.PLAST. EXTRUF 230K GHOR A
TRITURADOR MRE-S 3-100MOVER)
COMPRESOR IRN22K(F.Y GANDIA)
SECATIOR LIAND TMS-35(17.Y GANDIA)
CARRETELEV. MECANOCAR STILL M.RGO
SILO VERT.304 10083 METALOGOMNDE N
DEPOSITO DE POLIES TER{PEREIRA)

| ADECTTACION MAQUINAS PLASTIRUR{ADE
DEPOSITO (VINAGRERIAS RIOJANAR)PL
REFRIGERADLINTECO RCA SHIO(R-407C

2 MAQUINAS 2IWANO BIPEQUETAPOLIS
BOMBA TRASVASE DE GLF{PROPA DOMES
MAQUINA PLASTICO BURBUJAS.V.RIO
FOTOCOPLAL S TARP AR 5320-N{CANON)
IMPRESORA ORI ML-332[{COPTYEC)
IMPRESORA MATRIC.OKT MLIZDCOPLY
IMPRESORA MULT. ORI ES-546 [{QUILEZ
VEHICTULO MARCA SEAT PANDA COMERCI
REMOLOUE CAMION IVECO MU-08YT-13(C
MERCEDES MODL 170435 SLE.200 ROADS
CAMION RENALULT MOD.PREMITUM 370.18
FURISMO ALFA ROMEO 4697 BPZ

| TRACTOR JOIN DEERE MODELO 6620 4%
FURGON CAINYY WOLKSWAGEN 4751 CDH
REMOLOUE MARSEMAR MOD.RBI4000MAR
VEHICULO MARCA SEAT TRANS
VOLKSWAGEN POLO 1886 DXG, PLASTIE
FURISMO CITROEN JUMPY MATR.8328-F
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54.001 | (54.001)
33.238 | (33.238)
13.925 (13.925)
23307 (23.307)
12.717 (12.717)
17.804 (17.952)
45.631 {46.031)
370.569 (170.569)
235.748 (235.312)
108.083 (108.083)
72.000 (72.600)
28.310 (28.546)
28.420 (28.657)
166,899 (158.866)
37.388 (37.700)
16,122 (36.122)
69,136 (55.300)
48,600 (38.880)
12,305 | (9.844)
1.800 {1.440)
12,000 (9.600)
30.000 (21.000)
3.000 (2.100)
11.946 (8.362)
4404 (1.083)
10.000 (4.350)
13,409 (5.587)
4.863 (2.027T)
32.085 (32.085)
1,500 (900)
104 (49)
501 (238)
1.128 (705)
2.773 (2.773)
9.015 (9.015)
27.361 (27.361)
56,105 (56.495)
19,337 (19.337)
31.854 (31.854)
12.564 (12.564)
£000 (4.050)
3371 (3.371)
14,389 (14.569)
17.629 (17.849)




INTERNATIONAL FOAM TECHNOLOGIES SPAIN, S.L.U.

AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated report for the year ended

on 31 of March from 2023

218803048 | REMOLQUE MARSEMAR MILRB14000 PLAS
218803052 | CAMION DAF 9287-BVD(SINDEL)
218803053 | REMOLQUE MIROFRET MU-04798-R(SINI)

I'oal

14, Income and expense

a) Met turnover

4.000 (4.050)

9.500 (5.938)

1.000 (988)
3327027 (2.584.303)

The distribution of the net amount of turnover for each company and by geographic markets of the
consolidated set of the annual year ended March 31, 2023 and at the year ended March 31, 2022,

is as follows:

MN422a 0020 5
Activity Calegory FLNE2E 31.03.22
Sale of fnished product 46179174 50,336,326
Sale of by-products or waste 1034643 841.453
47213817 SLITTTTS
: § 01.04.22 al 110421
Geographical markels 11.03.23 l 31.[’."3.221“ Ya
Spain 43,339,183 02 2%, 16,265,130 a0,4%,
Other European Unien Countrics 163071 0,3% 325,759 0,0%,
IRest of world 3.511.504 7.4% 4 3868010 0.0%
47215817 100%, SL1TLT TR

b} Consumption of merchandise, raw materials and other consumable materials

Its breakdown is as follows:

Supplies
Mational

Stock variation (increase)

Fiseal year from Fiseal vear from

01.04.22 1 0L0421 e

31.03.23 31.03,22

(33.713.740) (42.252.886)
279957 690.294

(33.433.783) (41.362.592)
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c) Employee benefil expense

Its breakdown is as follows:

01.04.22 to 010421 1o
31.05.23 31.03.22

Social secunty confributions payvable by
commpany £83.331 {869, 162)

d) Oiher results

The detail of the results originated outside the normal activity of the company, included in the
heading "Other results”, is as follows:

01.04.22 131.03.23 0104212 31.03.22
[ncome  expenses Total Income expenses Total
Fines and administrative sanctions - - - - (B3.167) (83.167)
Cancellation of halances - - - 2301 (4.668) 18,355
Insurance claims and athers - - - 17.294) - 17.290
Other incomeexpenses 584 (1.539) i933) 11.774 (3,869} 7.907
JRd (1.539) (9535) 52089  (93.705) (41.615)

&) Average number of employees

The average number of Directors and persons employed during the years ended March 31, 2023
and 2022 is as follows:

Fiscal year from Fiscal vear from

01.04,22 10 0L0421
Proflesional calegorics 31.03.23 31.03.22
Administrators | 1
Empluyees of the admin type 14 14
Production L1 116
125 131
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The number of directors and persons employed at the end of the financial years ended 31 March
2023 and 2022, distributed by professional categories, is as follows:

31.03.23 310322
P'roffesional category Men Women Men Women
Administrators I " 1 .
Employees ol the admin Lype 7 7 7 7
Production 102 5 15 &
_I 0 12 123 13 -

The average number of persons employed during the ¢xercises ended 31 March 2023 and 2022
with disabilities greater than or equal to thirty-three per cent is 3 persons respectively in the
category of production pawn.

At the end of the linancial years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, the Senior Management is
composed of the Group Administrators, including Interplasp, 5.1.. The remuncration received
during the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 by the members of the Board of Directors and
by the stall of Senior Management of the Company, classificd by concepts, have been the
following:

Amounts reccived by Senior Management

Figcal year from Fiscal year [rom
01.04.22 to 010421 tn
31.03.23 3032
Salares, allowances and other remuncration 174.292 131,690

There are no advances or credits granted to all members of the administralive body in force at the end
of the year ended March 31, 2023 or at the end of the year ended March 31, 2022.

There are no pension and life insurance obligations in respect of [ormer and current members of the
administrative body.

f) Contribution to consolidated results

The contribution of each company to the consolidaled resulls, expressed in euros, is indicated
below:

104,22 1o 01021 o
310323 31.03.22
prodils / Consolidated
(lozses) profits / {losses)
International Voam Technololgies Spain, 8.1 (484,340 (482.334)
[nterplasp, 5.L. 1AT1.073 2672008

2886713 2 180,570)
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15, Information on the environment

The Group has among its [ixed assets a photovoltaic solar installation for sell-consumption to
promote the generation and self-consumption of [inal energy acquired. The net book value of said
[ixed assets acquired during the year amounts to 232,206 euros at the end of the year ended March
31,2023 (258,451 curos al the end of the previous year). This fixed asscl has been subsidized by the
Ministry of Business, Industry and Spokesperson, by which subsidies were called for the promotion
ot cnergy elliciency and the use of renewable energies by companies within the scope of the FEDER
2014/2020 operational program for the Region of Murcia, for the year 2020, 80% of the total amount
ol the investment, co-financed by the FEDTR,

The Group has not provided provisions to cover risks and expenses for cnvironmental actions,
considering that there are no contingencies related to the protection and improvement of the
environment.

The Group has not been allocated greenhouse gas emission allowances in the period of validily of
the National Allocation Plan, nor does it have assets included in the tangible fixed assets related to
greenhouse gas emission allowances, nor has it incurred expenditures or received subsidies during
the year related to greenhouse gas cmission rights. Similarly, it has not provided provisions for
greenhouse gas emission rights, considering that there are no contingencies related to sanctions or
measures of a provisional nature, in the terms provided for in 1/2005.1a Ley

The expenses incurred during the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 whose purpose has been the
protection and improvement of the environment have amounted to 10.459 euros and 8.355 euros,
respectively. The destination of these expenses has been, fundamentally, to the management and
removal of wasic.
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6. Business combinations

The Company acquired by contract dated July 29, 2019 and raised to the public on October 14, 2019
before the notary 93.66% of the shares ol Interplasp, S.L. As part of the closing actions ol the trans[er
of the shares, and o guarantee the payment obligations of the scllers with respect to the goarantecd
payment obligations, as determined by the contract of sale between both parties, the sellers and the
buyer have agreed to create a deposil, charged to the purchase price in the amount of 6.874. 150 curos
and signed an escrow contract regulating the releases and instructions that the sellers and / or the
buyer will perform as the agreed purchase conditions are met, At the end of the year, said amount
had been released for an amount of 5.985.008 curos, the relerence values used to ealculate the

Goodwill were as follows:

ASSET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Intangible assets
Computes software

Froperty, plant and equipment
Land and buildings

Technical installations and other lixed assels
Asscts under construction and advances

Delerred tax assels
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivahles for sales and services rendercd

Other debtors

Financial investinent short time
Cash and eash equivalents
TOTAL ASSETS

INTERFLASPE, 5.1.
Balance on December 31,

31.12.2019
15.391.007

4273
4.273

15,358,761
1L710.576
3903773
684412
27973
12.238.121
2.124.758
7047486
6.710.332
33713
32.398
3.033.479
27.629.12%

201y

LIARILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Mon-current debts
Buank borrowings

Other lnancial liabilities
Dreferred tax liabilities
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current debts

Bank borrowings

Other linancial Labilies
Trade and other payables
Suppliers

Misccllanous coditors
Personal (unpuid remuneration)
Current tax liahility

Other payables

TOTAL LIABILITIES

31.12.2019

2.933.272

1.056.420
970,489

£5.931
1.878.552

11.307.185
6.690.108

3007175
1.682,933
4.617.077
2.727.0438
199,379
144,522
110544
435 584

14.242.457

In the financial year 2021/22, the former partners of Interplasp, 5.L., have compensated the Group with
the amount of 235,939 euros in concept of lower amount of the purchase of the shares ol said company
according to an agreement adopted on Scptember 30, 2019, an amount that has been registered
retrospectively considering that it should have been estimated and registered at the end of the 2020/21
financial year, since on that date an agreement had already been reached in principle for that amount.
As a result, the Group has restated the value of Goodwill in Interplasp as of March 31, 2021, reducing
it by 235,939 euros. Although some of the terms of the Excrow contract are pending expiration, it is
estimated that goodwill will not undergo further modifications (note 1).
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17. Related party transactions

The details of the transactions carried out with related parties during the vears ended 31 March 2023
and 2022, expressed in euros, are as [ollows:

31.03.23
. - Company Type of link
Sheela Foam Limited Parent company
D. Tushaar Gautam Manager-Administrator
D, Rahul Gautam Manager-Administrator
13, Alejandm Tnan Palao Serrano Manager-Administrator
D. Jose Miguel Palao Serrano Other related party

31.03.22

Company Type of link

Sheela Foam Limited Parent company
[, Tushaar Gautam Manager-Administrator
D, Rahul Gaulam Manager-Administrator
[ Alcjandro Juan Palao Serrano Manager-Administrator
D, Juse Miguel Palao Serrano Cither related party

The breakdown of the balance sheet balances with related parties at the close ol the [inancial years
ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

Saldo al 31,0323

Parent entity
CURRENT ASSET
Trade receivables and other receivables 1.575
Customers for sales and provision of services group companies 1.575
31.03.23 31.03.22
Parent entity Parent entity
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Debts to group companies and long-lerm associates 8.000.000 8.000.000
Debts to group companies and Short-term associates 266,494 101.390
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payable - 77667
Suppliers, Group companies - 77.667
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The pricing policy followed in all transactions carried out during the year is due to the application of
normal market value, in accordance with article 18 of the Corporate Tax Law.

The detail of the ransactions carried oul with related partics during the years ended 31 March 2023
and 2022, expressed in euros, are as [ollows:

010422 to 010421 to
30323 303

Concepto Interest paid Interest paid
Entidad dominants L. 1004 100979

At the end of the financial years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, the heading "Debts with group
companies and long-term associates” includes a loan amounting to 8.000.000 euros plus accrued
interest granied by the parent entily, with a maximum maturity of 8 yvears thal acerues an interest of
1.25%, commissions and expenses paid by it to financial institutions on behalf of the Group in the
amounl of 368,848 euros and other amounts delivered For the payment of current expenses.

18. Other information

The members of the Parent Company's Board of Directors and persons related to them as defined by
Article 231 have nol reported any dircet or indircet conflicts of interest that could allect the Parenl

Compary.

During the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, the fees accrued by the auditor of the consolidated
annual accounts, as well as the fees for services invoiced by the auditors of the annual accounts of the
companies included in the consolidation have been the following:

01.04,22 1o 01,044,217 to
31.0321 1140322
by anditors ar by anditors or
reluted relafed

COnpanies cumpanies
Aunditing services 15.750 14.850
Cither services related (o the audil 12.075 10.300
- 10,778

Oither services provided
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19, Seemenied inlormation

The Administrators consider all the operations carried out by the companies that make up the Group
within the same segment, which is why segmented information is not provided.

20). Subsequent events

On June 2022, the company began the cxpansion project of its facilities, within the premises where
the company is located, made up of two new constructions, plus capital goods, mainly the expansion
of the dryers where the foam is cured.

These actions have an estimated investment budgel of 8 million euros, which have been fully
financed by different linancial entitics,

With this new project, the company intends to expand its productive capacily by 25% in its objective
to continue expanding its presence in the sector.

It is expected that during the year 2023 the works and machinery will be available [or use.

As of the date of preparation of these annual accounts, Management has carried out an evaluation of
the possible events that could have an impact on the Company and its operations, reaching the
conclusion that no significant impacts are [orescen in the short terim that could affect to the volume
of operations or normal development of the Company's activily, the expected results, the valuation
of its assets and other relevant magnitudes.
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PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS BY THE
GOVERNING BODY

(Free translation from the original in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy, the Spanish-language version
prevails)

In compliance with the provisions of current legislation, the Directors of INTERNATIONAL
FOAM TECHNOLOGIES SPAIN, S.L.U. have prepared the consolidated annual accounts
(consolidated balance sheet, consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of changes
in equity, consolidated cash flow statement and the notes to the consolidated annual accounts) for
INTERNATIONAL FOAM TECHNOLOGIES SPAIN, S.L.U. AND SUBSIDIARIES for the
year beginning on April 1, 2022, ended March 31, 2023.

In addition, they declare that they have signed these documents by signing this sheet attached to
the Notes to the Annual Accounts, which are included on pages 1 through 42.

Yecla, April 28, 2023

!
Rahul Gautam
Common Administrators

Tu;lﬁar autam
Common Adminis



Consolidated Management Report

{Free translation from the original in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy, the Spanish-language version
prevails)

The evolution and development of the business and activity is shown both from the economic and
financial point of view in the attached consolidated annual accounts that collect the information
for the annual year ended March 31, 2023,

At the time of preparing these interim consolidated financial statements, the health crisis caused
by COVID-19 is waning, however the war in Ukraine has added a lot of uncertainty to all scctors
of the economy.

The sales ol the IFTS Group al the end of the annual [inancial year ended on March 31, 2023 have
reached 47.213.817 euros, 7.74% lower than those of the previous financial year. [lowever, the
percentage of profit belore (axes with respect (o sales has increased by 2 percenlage points, going
[rom 2.878.890 euros al the end of the year ended on March 31, 2022 (o the 3.610.856 euros al
the end of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023, Therefore, during the fiscal year ended March
31, 2023, the margin has increased compared 1o previous periods as a resull of a rise in the tariff
prices ol [nished products o reflect correetly, without loss of margins, the conlinuous increase
in the price of raw matcrials.

On June 2022, the company began the expansion project of its Facilities, within the premises
where the company is located, made up of two new constructions, plus capital goods, mainly the
expansion ol the dryers where the foam is cured.

These actions have an estimated investment budget of 8 million euros, which have been fully
[inanced by dillerent [nancial entitics,

With this new project, the company inlends (o expand its productive capacity by 25% in its
objective to continue expanding ils presence in the sector,

It is expected that during the year 2023 the works and machinery will be available for use.

The Grroup conducts most of its business in the domestic market. ‘The most significant risks refer
Lo the purchase prices of raw malerials, as well as the risks of collection and inlerest rate for the
indebledness assumed by the Parent Company for the purchase of the sharcs of Interplasp, 5.L.

The risks of the purchase prices of raw materials are covered by price and volume negolialions
with the main suppliers and we do not believe that they represent significant figures that could
aftect the progress ot the business. On the other hand, the recent entry into the Sheela Foam Group
will allow a betier negotiating position with suppliers,

The risks inherent in the sale such as the policy of customer diversilication, sales prices (o public
entities, etc. do not pose significant risks that may affect the progress of the business. The
Company has subscribed insurance policies that cover a signilicant parl of the risk ol colleclion
[rom customers. There are no significant risks in relation to price, credit risk, liquidity risk and
cash flow risk related to the (Group's financial instruments.



Additionally, decisions and strategies continue to be made that are considered appropriate to
strenglhen and conlimm the objectives sct in previous years: differentiation of our products with
respect to those of the competition, improvements in quality and incrcase of share in both the
domestic market and foreign markets through the reinforcement and positioning of our product.

No research and development costs recognized as an expensc have been incurred during the year
ended March 31, 2023 or during the year ended March 31, 2022,

During the vear ended 31 March 2023 and during the annual year ended 31 March 2022, no shares
of the Parent Company have been acquired.

In compliance with Law 31/2014, of December 3, which modities the Capital Companics Law
[or the improvement of corporale governance, in which modifications are introduced that affect
the content of the annual accounts and in terms of the information to be included in the annual
dccounts report and in the management report and that modifies section 1 of article 262 of the
TRLSC, the company, according Lo the information contained in its Report, does not exceed the
average payment periods established in Law 15/2010 of July 5 on measures to combat lale
payment in commercial operations. However, it will continue to influence the improvement of its
payment procedures o achicve 100% payvment (o suppliers and creditors as established in current
regulations,

There have been no events after the end of the year that substantially or signilicantly modify the
data for the Group at the end of the year, in this sense it is expected that neither the siluation
caused by Covid-19, nor the military contlict triggered after the invasion of Ukraine by Russia,
will have a signilicant effect on the Group. On June 2022, the company began the project to
expand its facilitics, within the premises where the company is located, with an approximate
investment budget of § million euros, which have been financed in their entircty by different
financial entities It is cxpected that during the year 2023 the works and machinery will be
available for use.

This management report is issued in accordance with the provisions of Royal Legislative Decree
1/2010, of July 2, which approves the revised text of the Capital Companies Law and its
subscquent modilications.



PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS BY THE
GOVERNING BODY

(Free translation from the original in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy, the Spanish-language version
prevails)

In compliance with the provisions of current legislation, the Directors of INTERNATIONAL FOAM
TECHNOLOGIES SPAIN, S.L.U. have prepared the Consolidated Directors Report for
INTERNATIONAL FOAM TECHNOLOGIES SPAIN, S.L.U. AND SUBSIDIARIES for the year of
the year beginning on April 1, 2022, ended March 31, 2023.

In addition, they also declare that they have signed this document by signing this sheet attached to that
report, consisting of two pages.

Yecla, April 28, 2023

‘ -r.f—"—-'_'__'j/

Rahul Gautam
Common Administrators

Tushaaf Gaut{
Common Adri' i




